
Investment Board

Date: Friday 7 July 2017

Time: 10.00 am Public meeting Yes

Venue: Room 116, 16, Summer Lane, Birmingham, B19 3SD

Membership
Councillor Izzi Seccombe (Chair) Warwickshire County Council
Councillor Jim O'Boyle Coventry City Council
Councillor Sean Coughlan City of Wolverhampton Council, Dudley MBC, 

Sandwell MBC and Walsall MBC
Councillor Robert Hulland Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council
Councillor Majid Mahmood Birmingham City Council
Councillor Peter Richards Non-Constuent Authorities
Nick Abell Coventry & Warwickshire Local Enterprise 

Partnership
Paul Brown Black Country Local Enterprise Partnership
Gary Taylor Greater Birmingham & Solihull Local Enterprise 

Partnership

Quorum for this meeting shall be at least one member from five separate constituent councils

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact:

Contact Carl Craney Governance Services Officer West Midlands Combined Authority
Telephone 0121 214 7965
Email Carl.Craney@wmca.org.uk

Public Document Pack



Agenda
Page 2 of 2

AGENDA
No. Item Presenting Pages

Meeting Business Items

1.  Apologies for Absence (if any) Chair None

2.  Declarations of Interests (if any) Chair None

Business Items for Consideration

3.  Minutes of last meeting Chair 1 - 6

4.  Matters Arising Chair None

5.  Midland Metro East Birmingham - Solihull 
Extension and Trams 2030 - Development 
Funding

Peter Adams 7 - 14

6.  Exclusion of the Public and Press
[To pass the following resolution:
That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act, 1972 the public and 
press be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business as they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information relating to 
the business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information)].

Chair None

Meeting Business Items

7.  Gentle Properties Ltd. - CIF Senior Debt Loan Gerald Gannaway 15 - 26

8.  CIF / LRF Dashboard Nick Oakley 27 - 30



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 1 of 6

Investment Board  

Date 26 May 2017

Minutes
Voting Members 
Councillor Izzie Seccombe (Vice Chair – 

In the Chair)
Warwickshire County Council

Councillor Robert Hulland Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council
Paul Brown Black Country Local Enterprise Partnership
Nick Abell Coventry and Warwickshire Local 

Enterprise Partnership
Gary Taylor Greater Birmingham and Solihull local 

Enterprise Partnership

Non-Voting Member
Councillor Robert Vaudry (substitute for 
Councillor Peter Richards)

Stratford on Avon District Council 

Sue Summers Finance Birmingham

In Attendance 
David Cockroft Coventry City Council
Carl Craney West Midlands Combined Authority
Gerald Gannaway Finance Birmingham
Phil Hewitt Transport for West Midlands
Angela Hosford Transport for West Midlands
Nick Oakley Finance Birmingham
Mark Taylor West Midlands Combined Authority

30/16 Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Sean Coughlan (Walsall MBC), 
Councillor Majid Mahmood (Birmingham City Council), Councillor Jim O’Boyle (Coventry City 
Council) and Councillor Peter Richards (Stratford on Avon District Council) (Substitute Member 
– Councillor Robert Vaudry – Stratford on Avon District Council). 

Apologies for absence had also been received from Sarah Middleton (Black Country Local 
Enterprise Partnership) and Katie Trout (Greater Birmingham and Solihull Local Enterprise 
Partnership). 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 2 of 6

31/16 Declarations of Interest

Nick Abell declared an interest in Agenda Item No. 8 9Collective Investment Fund – investment 
Case – Expert Holdings Limited) and advised that he would withdraw from the meeting during 
the consideration of that item.

32/16  Chair’s Announcement

The Chair welcomed Councillor Robert Vaudry, Stratford on Avon District Council to the 
meeting. 

33/16 Minutes

Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 April 2017 be confirmed as a correct record 
and signed by the Chair. 

34/16 Matters arising

With reference to Minute No. 29/16 (Amber REI Holdings Limited, Snowhill Birmingham), the 
Chair enquired as to the current position with this case. 

Nick Oakley reappraised the Board that this project was on hold pending an assessment of the 
overall portfolio to ensure there was a balance of economic return, financial risk and commercial 
return within the portfolio.

Nick Oakley advised that a matrix was being prepared for consideration by the Investments 
Advisory Group reviewing each investment from an economic output, financial risk and 
commercial return perspective, with economic return being the key driver in line with the fund 
objectives. This matrix would further inform the decision making process.

 The Company was aware of the position with the application being on hold the project was not 
proceeding at this point.

Councillor Robert Hulland commented that this was the reason for the questions relating to the 
role of the Board which had been raised at the last meeting. The Chair queried the reasons as 
to why this particular case did not have support from the Bank. Nick Oakley undertook to look 
into this matter but suggested that it resulted from the Bank funding policy direct bank funding 
would not be readily available.

35/16 Metro – Wednesbury to Brierley Hill Extension

Phil Hewitt presented a report which updated the Board on the on-going Wednesbury to Brierley 
Hill extension development and which sought financial cover for the local element of funding 
from the WMCA to enable submission of a business case to Government. The report sought 
also to note approval to submit an Initial Outline Business Case for the Wednesbury to Brierley 
Hill extension to Government by the WMCA.

Councillor Robert Hulland commented that the overall costs of the scheme had increased and 
enquired as to the likelihood of them increasing further. He questioned whether the additional 

Page 2



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 3 of 6

sums added to the project cost were sufficient. Phil Hewitt acknowledged that a possibility 
existed that costs could continue to rise and explained that this was one of the reasons 
independent auditors had been appointed to review all costs associated with the scheme. He 
was optimistic that the ‘Optimism Bias’ would be reduced.

Councillor Robert Hulland enquired whether it would be possible for the construction and 
procurement contracts would be sourced locally. Phil Hewitt explained that this would not be 
possible with the purchase of the trams but that the producers might establish local assembly 
plants were the order be sufficient to justify such a step. With the infrastructure it was likely to 
be sources locally.

Councillor Robert Vaudry asked a series of questions relating to the economic case, the 
absence of an EVA analysis, the cost ratio benefits, the interest rates payable on the funding 
and the position in the event of an overspend on the contract. Phil Hewitt explained that 
benchmarking on the EVA could be provided and that the cost benefit ratio was 1.6 : 1 whereas 
a ratio of 1.5 – 2.0 : 1 was normally considered to be good for business cases for tam schemes. 
He reported that the scheme was Webtag compliant and that work was continuing with the 
relevant local authorities to identify the benefit from the scheme from access to new 
development and residential sites. He reminded the Board that £1.4m had been drawn down in 
2016/17 for the scheme. Mark Taylor advised that this sum had not been released from the 
Collective Investment Fund but that the £4m was a loan to fund capital expenditure. 
Furthermore, no rate of interest was payable on the loan as the WMCA would borrow money 
from the Public Works Loans Board or through internal borrowing as detailed in the Treasury 
Strategy. Councillor Robert Vaudry enquired whether the loan would be repaid. Mark Taylor 
confirmed that it would not but the scheme would be included as a capital asset of the WMCA.

The Chair reminded the Board that this particular scheme had been an integral part of the 
Agreement to establish the WMCA. Phil Hewitt commented that the risks had been identified in 
the Devolution Deal and that it was intended that the Business Case would be submitted to 
Government during May 2017. It was hoped that the scheme would be referenced in the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer’s Autumn Statement. Nick Abell commented that the scheme had 
been a project included in the Devolution Deal and that this Board’s primary role in this 
particular case was to monitor progress from a financial perspective. He questioned as to whom 
would own the asset. Phil Hewitt explained that the capital asset would be owned by the WMCA 
and that from October 2018, when operation of the Metro service was taken in-house, all 
revenue would be returned to the WMCA.

The Chair queried whether a structural survey of the proposed route was required. Phil Hewitt 
reported that a structural survey was currently underway and that the budget included a 
conservative element for refurbishment. A further report on this element of the scheme would be 
available in due course.

Resolved:

1. That the progress being made on delivering the Wednesbury to Brierley Hill Extension 
be noted:

a. For the period up to 31 March 2017 be noted (Section 5.0 of the report refers);

Page 3



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 4 of 6

b. The delivery of an Outline Business Case submission to the WMCA Assurance 
process (Section 6.0 of the report refers);

c. That planned for the period up to March 2018 (Section 7.0 refers)
2. That the increase in estimated outturn cost for the project of £343.6 million and the 

principle of WMCA providing financial cover for the local element of this cost to 
enable the submission of a business case to Government (section 8.0 of the report 
refers) as agreed by the WMCA Board on 21 April 2017 be noted;

3. That funding of up to £4 million for the 2017/18 financial year in order to progress the 
scheme be approved (Section 8.0 of the report refers);

4. That, subject to the outcome of on-going WMCA Governance processes (Section 6.0 
of the report refers) the submission of the Outline Business o Government, for the 
Wednesbury to Brierley Hill extension, seeking confirmation of project funding in the 
2017 Autumn Statement, as approved by the WMCA Board on 21 April 2017 be 
noted.

36/16 Sprint – Hagley Road

Angela Hosford presented a report which detailed the revised funding profile for the Hagley 
Road Sprint scheme as agreed with the Greater Birmingham and Solihull Local Enterprise 
Partnership and which informed the Board of the continued political and Birmingham City 
Council support for the scheme. She report also advised on the opportunity to implement further 
public transport priority measures on the corridor as a second phase through the HS2 
Connectivity Package.

Councillor Robert Hulland enquired whether the costs now quoted were realistic or whether they 
were likely to increase incrementally. He also enquired as to the position with the derogation 
with regard to the use of the 24 metre vehicle. Angela Hosford advised that the costs were as 
realistic as they could be at this stage but that they would be considered as part of the benefits 
review. With regard to the 24 metre vehicle she advised that a decision from the Department of 
Transport was still awaited. She reported that whilst this particular scheme did allow for the use 
of a 24 metre vehicle this would not necessarily be the case for future Sprint schemes. She 
confirmed that suitable 18 and 24 metre vehicles would be considered. Councillor Robert 
Hulland welcomed the two tier approach now described as 24 metre vehicles would not be 
suitable on all schemes. The Chair commented on the need to ‘future proof’ the scheme.

Paul Brown questioned the timescale for the scheme. Angela Hosford advised that it was 
anticipated that this particular scheme would be operational in 2021/22. Paul Brown enquired 
whether the Mayor would wish for the scheme to be operational at an earlier date. Angela 
Hosford explained that some infrastructure works would be carried out at an earlier date in order 
to deliver benefits to the transport network.

Nick Abell enquired how much of the funding had still to be identified and to the position if a 
potential operator was not willing to make a financial contribution. Angela Hosford advised that 
these discussions would be undertaken with potential operators, Nick Abell questioned whether 
the WMCA would retain control of the scheme once operational. Angela Hosford confirmed this 
to be the case.

Page 4



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 5 of 6

The Chair questioned the position with land availability. Angela Hosford reported on the on-
going discussions and negotiations with the land owners and lease holders. She explained that 
the land, once acquired, would be used as ‘Bus Lanes’ and was identified as such in the 
Highway Improvement Plan.

Resolved:

1. That the WMCA Board be recommended to accept the offer of £7.29 million from the 
Greater Birmingham and Solihull Local Enterprise Partnership (GBSLEP) towards the 
Hagley Road Sprint Scheme;

2. That the WMCA Board be recommended to approve, in principle, the funding of a 
further £3.15 million for delivery of the Hagley Road Sprint Scheme comprising £0.75 
million of Integrated Transport Block (ITB) funding approved previously and £2.4 
million of HS2 Connectivity Package funding;

3. That the offer from the GBSLEP of £7.29 million which is the balance of its 
contribution towards the Hagley Road Sprint Scheme, development funding having 
already been received (total GBSLEP contribution of £8.1 million) be noted;

4. That the requested addendum sent to GBSLEP to re-profile expenditure within the 
Hagley Road Sprint Scheme submitted business case be noted;

5. That following submission of the Hagley Road Sprint Scheme business case to 
GBSLEP, the agreement of the WMCA Board to the HS2 Connectivity Package be 
noted (this package includes additional investment for the Hagley Road Sprint 
Scheme (Phase 2) with an estimated value of £50 million);

6. That it be noted that following approval of the Strategic Outline Business Case 
(SOBC) for the Hagley Road Sprint Scheme (Phase 2) a paper recommending the 
delivery approach for both the promoted scheme and Phase 2 would be submitted to 
the WMCA management Board to ensure both schemes dovetail;

7. That it be noted that the Birmingham City Council Cabinet Lead for Transport would 
like to see early delivery of benefits from the Hagley Road Sprint Scheme;

8. That it be noted that no physical works on the promoted scheme would be undertaken 
until the WMCA Management Board had agreed the delivery approach for the 
scheme(s).  

37/16 Exclusion of Public and Press

Resolved:

That in accordance with Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act, 1972 the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business as it involves 
the likely disclosure of exempt information relating to the business or financial affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information).

38/16 West Midlands Combined Authority CIF / LRF Dashboard

Nick Oakley presented the WMCA CIF / LRF Dashboard as at 18 May 2017 which detailed:

 Investments committed;
 Geographical allocation; and

Page 5



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 6 of 6

 Pipeline – WIP.

Resolved:

1. That the Dashboard be received and noted;
2. That a report on project management including details of numbers of jobs created, 

scale of inward investment generated, monitoring of construction etc. be submitted to 
future meetings.

39/16 Collective Investment Fund – Investment Case – Expert Holdings Limited

Gerald Gannaway presented a report on a Collective Investment Fund (CIF) Senior Debt Loan 
with a bridging facility for a maximum of two years with repayment from the sale of old premises 
and refinance of the remaining loan by a commercial mortgage provider and responded to 
questions posed by those present.

Resolved:

That the senior debt loan as now reported be approved.

Page 6



This report is PUBLIC 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Agenda Item No. 

Page 1 of 8

     
Investment Board 

Date 7 July 2017 
Report title Midland Metro East Birmingham to Solihull 

extension and Trams 2030 – Development 
funding

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Lead 

Councillor Roger Lawrence – Transport 

Accountable Chief 
Executive

Laura Shoaf, Managing Director TfWM

Email laura.shaof@tfwm.org.uk
Tel 0121 214 7444

Accountable 
Employee

Phil Hewitt, Metro Programme Director

Email phil.hewitt@tfwm.org.uk
Tel 0121 214 7254

Report to be/has been 
considered by

Technical Appraisal Panel – 7/12/16
Investment Advisory Group – 16/01/17
WMCA Management Board – 22/06/2017

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

mailto:laura.shaof@tfwm.org.uk
mailto:phil.hewitt@tfwm.org.uk


 [PUBLIC]

Page 2 of 8

Recommendation(s) for action or decision:

The Metro Board is recommended to: 

1 Note the progress being made on the early stages of development of the East 
Birmingham to Solihull (EBS) Metro Extension scheme;

2 Approve in accordance with agreed delegations, that funding of £9.5m be approved 
to progress the EBS scheme though the statutory Transport and Works Act Order 
(TWAO) process; and

3 Approve in accordance with agreed delegations, that funding of £0.7m be approved 
to progress the Trams 2030 Programme of Works.

1. Purpose

1 .1 To provide an update on the development of the Midland Metro EBS extension and to seek 
approval for funding of £9.5m to progress the project through the TWAO process and into 
detailed design.  

1 .2 To provide an update on the Trams 2030 work stream and to seek approval for £0.7m to 
complete the next phase of detailed studies.

2. Background

1 .3 In November 2015 the Government announced the West Midlands Combined Authority 
Devolution Deal which confirmed its support for the work of the (then) West Midlands 
Combined Authority Shadow Board to develop a delivery plan, encompassing Metro 
extensions from Curzon to Interchange and from Brierley Hill, in order to realise the full 
benefits of HS2.

1 .4 The extension of the Midland Metro from Digbeth to east Birmingham- Solihull will play a 
key role in delivering the full potential for growth and jobs of HS2 and provide 
transformational benefits to areas with a persistent and high incidence of multiple 
deprivation by giving people access to jobs and services, linked to the Greater Birmingham 
and Solihull Local Enterprise Partnership (GBSLEP) training and skills agenda.

1 .5 The EBS project is much more than a transport project.  By aligning initiatives promoted by 
a wide local partnership in Education, Health, Employment, Housing and Education it seeks 
to transform the East Birmingham and North Solihull areas, breaking the people of this area 
out of the past and present embedded high levels of incidence of multiple deprivation.  The 
Metro scheme is the key backbone for this transformation, not only providing local jobs in 
design and construction through the Midland Metro Alliance, but by linking people to major 
current centres for employment and the future jobs and growth hubs in the Birmingham City 
Centre Enterprise Zone and UK Central, and by providing a stimulus to development along 
the corridor.

1 .6 In more detail, the 16.5km extension will link growing residential areas and key community 
destinations such as St Andrews, Bordesley Green, Heartlands Hospital and Meadway with 
existing and new growth areas including Curzon HS2, Birmingham City Centre office and 
retail districts, Paradise Circus/Arena Central developments and Brindleyplace/Five 

Page 8



 [PUBLIC]

Page 3 of 8

Ways/Edgbaston to the west, and the NEC/Airport UK Central and HS2 Interchange Station 
to the east.  The route is shown in the plan attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

1 .7 Initial work in 2015-16 on the project focussed on high-level engineering studies to develop 
the indicative route with which to test the viability of the project through development of an 
Initial Outline Business Case (IOBC).  This work has been carried out in partnership with 
Birmingham City and Solihull Councils and the IOBC demonstrates a good value for money 
case exists for the project.

1 .8 The IOBC was approved by the WMCA Technical Appraisal Panel on 7th December 2016, 
and the Investment Advisory Group on 16th January 2017.

1 .9 The Trams 2030 programme acknowledges the need to consider Metro expansion in a 
programme approach, seeking to ensure that project provision aligns with the wider network 
ambition, thus providing better value for money across the programme.  Its objectives are 
to;

Ensure changes are introduced in an efficient and economic manner taking into account 
whole life cost and maintenance issues as well as network expansion requirements.

To ensure efficiencies are introduced by standardising the way we design; build and 
hence maintain the infrastructure.

EBS Initial Outline Business Case

1 .10 The submission of the Initial Outline Business Case to government was approved by the 
WMCA Board on 30th September 2016 and it was subsequently submitted to DCLG.  Minor 
comments have been received and a revised version requested, initially for the end May 
2017, however this has been affected by the General Election.  Guidance is being sought 
from the Mayor for the West Midlands on how he wishes to take forward the submission to 
the new Government.

1 .11 The IOBC was approved by the Technical Appraisal Panel on 7th December 2016 and the 
proposed funding of the overall project endorsed by the Investment Advisory Group on 16th 
January 2017.

1 .12 In summary, the overall scheme benefits have been assessed and a DfT Webtag compliant 
analysis has been undertaken, showing the following economic benefits:-

 Present Value of Benefits £455.7m (PV, 2010)

 Present Value of Costs £281.7m (PV, 2010)

 Net Present Value £174.1m (PV, 2010)

 Benefit:Cost Ratio 1.6:1

1 .13 As well as the normal Webtag analysis it is important to consider the wider economic 
benefits.  Closer proximity between businesses also boosts productivity, since firms benefit 
from being nearer to one another, sharing ideas and knowledge, and having a greater pool 
of potential workers from which to recruit. Within key high-value, high-skill sectors, 
employer skill requirements are often highly specific, and hence improvements to 

Page 9



 [PUBLIC]

Page 4 of 8

accessibility maximise the ability for firms to find workers that best suit their requirements. 
Thanks to the connectivity delivered by the scheme, more than 298,000 extra people will be 
within a 45-minute commute of the rapidly emerging business cluster at UK Central Hub.

1 .14 The EBS Metro extension is also a key component of the East Birmingham and North 
Solihull regeneration project with the improved connectivity it will provide being seen as vital 
to delivering the improvements in housing, education and health provision across the 
region.  A study has been commissioned by Birmingham City Council to consider the 
opportunities along the corridor and the benefits of the holistic approach described in 
paragraph 1 .5 above and this will be fed into the ongoing business case development work 
set out in this report, and for which funding approval is sought.

1 .15 Agglomeration benefits associated with the Solihull Extension could also generate an 
additional 15% - 20% of transport user benefits, equivalent to between £85 and £110 million 
of productivity benefits. Adding the £85m & £110m to the PVB (£455.7m) would increase 
the Benefit:Cost ratio to around 1.9:1 to 2.0:1. Not only does the Solihull Extension 
contribute towards bringing firms together, the productivity benefits this generates improves 
the attractiveness of the area as a whole to invest in. Businesses gain a competitive 
advantage, attracting investment and jobs, and further supporting the ambitious 
development plans for Birmingham Eastside and UK Central Hub

Delivery Schedule

1 .16 The scheme is at an early stage in its development and is expected to take a minimum of 9 
years to deliver, subject to the necessary statutory processes.  However this means that it 
could be delivered just prior to the opening of HS2 in 2026, although there is no room for 
delay if this is to be achieved.  

1 .17 The initial high level construction strategy indicates the possibility that the first section of the 
route, from Digbeth to Heartlands Hospital, could be constructed first and open for 
passenger operations prior to the entire route being completed.  This would allow for 
revenue generation prior to 2026 and also mitigate to a degree any delays caused to the 
scheme by third parties in the complex construction environment in the corridor in which a 
number of initiatives to make the most of HS2 are planned in the same period.

1 .18 The next key milestone is to submit an application for Transport and Works Act Order 
(TWAO) powers to build, maintain and operate the extension; this is planned for September 
2018.

3 Impact on the Delivery of the Strategic Transport Plan

1 .19 Expansion of Midland Metro is an important element in the development of the Strategic 
Transport Plan’s Metropolitan Rail and Rapid Transit Network.

4 Wider WMCA Implications

1 .20 Expansion of Midland Metro, as part of an integrated Rail and Rapid Transit Network, will 
enable better connectivity of key centres and corridors in Birmingham/Solihull and the Black 

Page 10



 [PUBLIC]

Page 5 of 8

Country with the wider Combined Authority area through effective interchange with 
suburban and regional rail services.

5 Recent Progress and Next Steps

1 .21 Following validation that the IOBC demonstrates that a good value for money case exists 
for the project a review of alternative routes has been undertaken to substantiate the case 
for the route.  This study compared the proposed route with alternative routes (some of 
which have been proposed historically) to provide robust evidence that the chosen 
alignment best serves the scheme objectives, and was carried out using the approved 
WMCA budget of £1.5m allocated for the last financial year.  It demonstrated that the route 
being taken forward into the design phase is much more preferable to the other options 
explored in terms of operability, patronage, infrastructure requirements and capital and 
operational costs.  

5.2 Funding of £9.5m is required in order to proceed with project development with the aim of 
submission of a TWAO application in 2018, working with local communities and partners to 
clarify and optimise the route through appropriate engagement and consultation, supported 
by appropriate engineering design and environmental work procured through the Midland 
Metro Alliance.  This will be used to deliver the following elements which are required as part 
of the TWAO submission:

Design
Surveys, ground investigation, development of designs, drawings and development of a 3D 
model.

Environmental Statement
Scoping report, surveys and assessments for each of the required chapters – traffic and 
transport, noise and vibration, air quality, greenhouse gases, townscape and visual impact, 
historic environment, soils, geology and contaminated land, water resources and land 
drainage, ecology, land use and land take, policies and plans, socio-economics, 
electromagnetic fields and climate resilience – and compilation of final report.

Transport Assessment
PRISM and VISSIM modelling, major junction modelling and assessment, parking surveys 
and assessment, non-motorised users’ surveys and assessment and compilation of the final 
report.

Land Referencing
Identification of land required temporarily or permanently, compilation of
Book of reference, land valuations.

Business Case
The IOBC will be taken forward and developed into a draft Outline Business Case suitable 
for presentation in evidence in the TWAO statutory process supporting the need for the 
scheme.

Legal Support
Parliamentary Agents for TWAO compilation and submission, Negotiations and legal 
agreements with stakeholders.

Page 11



 [PUBLIC]

Page 6 of 8

Stakeholder Management
Liaison with key stakeholders, public consultation.

5.3 A full list of deliverables is attached as Appendix 2 to this report.  At 16.5km, the EBS 
extension is the longest in the Metro Programme and so requires considerably more design 
work, surveys and associated work than on previous shorter extensions, and unlike the 
Wednesbury to Brierley Hill project WMCA needs to seek and secure the necessary TWAO 
powers.  This is reflected in the £9.5m total required to progress to submission of the TWAO 
which is considerably higher than the cost of the development phase of Metro extension 
schemes previously considered in the WMCA governance process.  

5.4 The Metro Board is recommended to recommend to WMCA Management Board, and 
subsequent WMCA Governance Boards in accordance with agreed delegations, that funding 
of £9.5m be approved to progress the EBS scheme though the statutory Transport and Works 
Act Order (TWAO) process.

Trams 2030 Programme

Work undertaken to date

5.5 The requirements for the whole life cost model has been completed and discussions have 
commenced with the supplier of the recently built Operational Cost model to determine 
whether it can be expanded to include the requirements for the whole life requirements.

5.6 The requirements for the power and operational model has been collected and a tender has 
been issued to build the models, the tenders have been returned and reviewed.  

5.7 The existing capabilities of each system has been analysed and the gaps in the existing 
knowledge base highlighted.

5.8 An assumptions log for the Network has been developed.

Next Steps

5.9 To provide consistency across the individual projects Design Briefs based on the 
assumptions that have been developed will be produced and more in-depth Design 
Standards will also be developed to reduce design and construction costs in the future and 
ultimately maintenance costs.

5.10 Taking into account the existing systems and the requirements of the expansion 
programme a report for each system under consideration will be produced highlighting at 
which key output the system does not become fit for purpose, due to capacity constraints or 
due to obsolescence.  

5.11 With respect to progressing the complex power modelling, software requires to be 
purchased and the models require to be built.  The outcome will be a model that covers the 
whole of the future network that has been validated across the existing system.  Once built 
the models will be used to develop a robust and efficient timetable and define the power 
requirements of the extensions.

Page 12



 [PUBLIC]

Page 7 of 8

5.12 Undertaking the operational model will provide the number of trams that will be required for 
each project and therefore how the tram fleet and hence the maintenance and Control 
systems should grow overtime.  

5.13 The outline Operational and Control room migration strategy and the depot and stabling 
strategy will be produced during this phase of the studies however will be finalised following 
the completion of the modelling work.  The cost of the above is estimated at £0.7m and the 
Board is recommended to recommend to WMCA Management Board, and subsequent 
WMCA Governance Boards in accordance with agreed delegations, that funding of £0.7m 
be approved to progress the Trams 2030 Programme.

6 Financial implications

Costs

6.1 The EBS project is at a very early stage of development and therefore only a high-level cost 
estimate has been prepared to support the economic appraisal.  At this stage it is 
appropriate to consider the highest levels of “Optimism Bias” in appraisal and for definition 
of the funding envelope.  The current estimated costs are:-

Estimated Outturn Cost £508m

Optimism Bias (50%) £227m

Maximum Outturn Cost £735m 

Funding

6.2 The Devolution Deal and HS2 Growth Strategy Implementation Plan identified this scheme 
as a high priority and earmarked £675m for it within the £8bn package of investment to 
provisionally be funded from two sources; £183.3m from Birmingham City Council’s 
Enterprise Zone funding and £492m from a separate ask to government.  Whilst the maximum 
cost outlined above exceeds this figure, further work to refine the scheme and the efficiencies 
to be developed within the Midland Metro Alliance give a good level of confidence that the 
project can be delivered within the originally identified funding envelope

6.3 A firm funding profile needs to be agreed with Government via the formal business case 
submission.  Although WMCA will be seeking to draw down Government funding in advance 
of any borrowing, this cannot be guaranteed. In continuing to develop the scheme, it is 
expected that WMCA will be required to cash-flow the early stage works of £9.5m until the 
Government funding is formally awarded allowing the scheme promotors to recover these 
sunk costs following the award of grant.

6.4 A key focus for the current stage is to work with DCLG to ensure that the new Government 
includes the project funding contribution set out in the 2015 Devolution Deal within its firm 
future spending plans, to be drawn down subject to obtaining the necessary TWAO powers 
and demonstrating value for money in a Final Business Case. Options for this are under 
discussion with local DCLG officials, and may involve one or more further Devolution Deals 
providing capacity for borrowing to cover expenditure across the programme.

Page 13



 [PUBLIC]

Page 8 of 8

6.5 Any further Devolution Deal funding mechanism will need to substantiate a “realistic 
prospect of funding” prior to WMCA submitting a Transport and Works Act Order (TWAO), 
as this is a requirement of the legislation.  It will be a requirement for the full anticipated 
cost to be covered in any application.  

6.6 For WMCA to meet the maximum outturn costs of £735m used for the outline business 
case an additional funding of £59.7m contribution would be required from other sources, 
reducing any WMCA borrowing requirements. 

6.7 As a final option if WMCA prudentially borrows it is important to set out the implications of 
that borrowing on the Authority. Assuming WMCA is required to fund the full £59.7m the 
impact of the borrowing on the Authority would result in an £3.0m annuity loan payment 
over 40 years at an interest rate of 4%.

6.8 The Metro cash flows are a primary revenue source against which WMCA can secure 
borrowing thus reducing any potential burden or impact on the WMCA budget. The 
borrowing will be funded from a combination of devolution grant and local taxation uplifts 
and it is anticipated by bringing operations in house the cost of this debt can be funded 
through the increase in operating revenue accruing to the authority after financing required 
capital renewals.

7 Legal implications

7.1 Any legal issues are covered within the main body of this report

8 Equalities implications

7.2 The extensions of Midland Metro will facilitate fully accessible journeys and access to 
employment, leisure and education, and link to other transport modes. 

9 Schedule of background papers

9.1 Report to WMCA Programme Board on 30th September 2016

10 Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Route plan of EBS extension 
Appendix 2 - List of Deliverables for EBS extension and Trams2030 projects

Page 14



Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of last meeting
	5 Midland Metro East Birmingham - Solihull Extension and Trams 2030 - Development Funding
	7 Gentle Properties Ltd. - CIF Senior Debt Loan
	CIF Matrix

	8 CIF / LRF Dashboard

